AGENDA

JEDO Board of Directors _;; ;

June 1, 2010 =< =

3:30 p.m. =

Chamber of Commerce Board Room = 7
& =

L8

W =

D

Approval of Minutes of May 15, 2010 meeting — Commissioner Ted Ensley

Presentation and action on GO Topeka Audit — Doug Glenn, Mayer, Hoffman, McCann

Consideration of Incentive Offers:

a. Review and approval of proposed incentive for Del Monte — Doug Kinsinger
b. Review and approval of proposed incentive for Bimbo/Allen Foods — Steve Jenkins

Update on Kanza Fire Commerce Park Infrastructure — Steve Jenkins
First Quarter 2010 Progress Report — Steve Jenkins

Adjournment — Commissioner Ted Ensley

i

i

LY
A

/\.‘E.z_;'.é . :ee.‘ PR
Udid

Vv e




Joint Economic Development Organization Board Minutes
March 15, 2010
11:00 a.m.

The Joint Economic Development Organization (JEDO) Board met at 11:00 a.m.
with the following Board members present: Shawnee County Commissioner Ted
Ensley, Chair; Shawnee County Commissioner Shelly Buhler; Shawnee County
Commissioner Vic Miller; City of Topeka Councilman Larry Wolgast; City of
Topeka Councilman Bob Archer; City of Topeka Mayor Bill Bunten. Absent:
City of Topeka Councilman Richard Harmon.

OTHERS PRESENT: Councilwoman Sylvia Ortiz; Councilman Jeff Preisner; Rich
Eckert, Shawnee County Counselor; Jackie Williams, City Attorney; Robert
Perry, Shawnee County Bond Counsel; Norton Bonaparte, City Manager; Tom
Vlach, Shawnee County Public Works Director; Tom Flanagan, Shawnee County
Public Works; Brian Armstrong, Bartlett and West; Steve Briman, Bartlett
and West; Tim Hrenchir, Topeka Capital Journal; Steve Jenkins, Topeka
Chamber of Commerce; Jo Feldman, Topeka Chamber of Commerce; Nora Patton-
Taylor; Olivia Simmons, Visit Topeka; Ken Daniels, Midway Wholesale.

County Commissioner Ted Ensley called the meeting to order.

ITEM NO. 1: County Commissioner Ted Ensley was elected as the 2010 JEDO
Presiding Officer.

Commissioner Miller moved to nominate Commissioner Ted Ensley to serve as
the presiding officer, seconded by Commissioner Buhler. Motion carried

unanimously.

ITEM NO. 2: The JEDO meeting minutes of November 19, 2009 were approved.

Mayor Bunten moved approval of the minutes of the JEDO Board meeting of
November 19, 2009, seconded by Councilman Archer. The motion carried

unanimously.

ITEM NO. 3: Discussion regarding the advancement of the 2004 Sales Tax
Program’s North Topeka Boulevard and 46™ Street intersection improvement

Eroject.

Shawnee County Public Works Director Tom Vlach presented the JEDO Board
with a drawing of the North Topeka Boulevard and 46" Street intersection
projects, a sales tax project cash flow spreadsheet, as of February 24,
2010, and the interlocal agreement regarding the 2004 sales tax program

approved by the voters.

Mr. Vlach said currently Shawnee County 1is planning on constructing
intersection improvements to NW 46™ Street and Rochester Road and are
currently under design with Bartlett and West for that project. Also,

1

_—_—




proposed improvements to the 46" Street and Topeka Boulevard intersection
are planned to be made as part of the sales tax program. The Rochester
intersection is planned to be constructed in 2013. According to the sales
tax program’s project schedule, the Topeka Boulevard project 1is scheduled

for 2016.

Mr. Vlach said as they got into the design of the Rochester improvements
and what they would need to do with the tangent segment on 46" street,
they noticed they would end up with grading issues where they stopped one
project and began the next project. It would result in a little bit of a
hump in the roadway. A temporary transition =zone would need to be
constructed to eliminate the hump. The temporary transition zone would
then be torn out and replaced three years later i1f they constructed the

two projects separately.

Mr. Vlach said in looking at the monies that have been coming in from
sales tax, they looked into whether it would make sense from a financial
standpoint to combine the two projects. He said if all things occur as
they project, they are now anticipating they will have a $6.3 million
balance at the end of the sales tax program after all infrastructure

projects on the list are completed.

Mayor Bunten asked if there would be a $6.3 million balance after all the
projects are done, i1f that money could be used for any other project other
than specified. Mr. Vlach said, the way he read the interlocal agreement,
those monies are then to be distributed, according to a state statute,
““between the City of Topeka and Shawnee County and other cities in the
County. Mayor Bunten asked -if Mr. Vlach felt comfortable about that
figure. Mr. Vlach said, as of right now, they did. He said when the
projections were originally estimated; i1t was his understanding they were

done conservatively.

Mayor Bunten asked if there was any possibility that money could be
distributed prior to completion of all the projects, in anticipation of
having a balance. Commissioner Miller said he did not think the money
could be distributed until the projects are completed or at least until
the final cost of the projects are known. Even with sales tax being down,
they’re doing way better overall on the final analysis than what was
projected. That’s not surprising because they were told all along
everything they were doing was conservative both in terms of construction
costs, projected revenues and interest rates. They were finding half way
into it that’s exactly what has happened because they’re $6.3 million

ahead of what was iInitially projected.

Mayor Bunten asked 1if, at this point in time, the money, under any
circumstances, would not be eligible to be used for something other than
those projects. Commissicner Miller said that was as much a political
guestion as it was a legal question. He said this question was put on the
~~pballot and specifically listed the projects they were asking the voters to
fund. Commissioner Miller said he thought from a political point of view,

2




even

if you could do it legally, they are bound to these projects and
these alone unless they get approval of the voters to do something else.

Councilman Preisner said to expand on Commissioner Miller’s comments; he
asked if these numbers were projected from 2010 out.

expectations were lowered on the sales tax?

County Public Works Department said "“no we did not”.
projections made for the original program, were coming in equal or better.
The 2009 projections for sales tax were projected at $14.3 million and it
in at about $200,000 above that. Councilman Preisner asked what the

If the revenue ™

Tom Flanagan with Shawnee

Through 20098 the

knew the City’s

came
fund balance is at this point. Mr. Flanagan said under 2009 the fund
balance shows $6,015,000. Commissioner Miller said he

sales tax projections are higher than the existing revenues are coming in
at but understand they were revising their sales tax projections each

year.

revenues,

five

These projections are not the same projections.

Consequently the

even with the sales tax having dropped from what we were four or

years ago, they’re still coming in ahead of what was projected
because they projected so conservatively.

Mr. Vlach reviewed the following JEDO Board Presentation handout.

JEDO Board Presentation
Advancement of NW 46" /Topeka Blvd Project
March 15, 2010

Currently under design for NW 46™ & Rochester Road Intersection
Will be roadway grade issues on segment between Rochester & Topeka
Current Sales Tax Program cash fiow projection = $6.3M balance at end of program

Will reduce construction engineering/inspection costs by estimated $160,000
a. One 8-month project vs. two 6-month projects
Will eliminate required temporary transitioning construction (est. $50,000)
Economies of scale
a. (25%-33% Labor & Equipment savings);
b. (6%-8% Mobilization)
c. Assuming 15% savings on a $1.7M project = $255,000
Typical construction inflation — 6%/year
a. At a rate of 3%-6% = $150,000-$300,000 savings
Disrupt the traveling public once instead of twice

KDOT is administering the Rochester project and is agreeable to include the Topeka Blvd project as part of the

Rochester project. Topeka Blvd costs tracked as Non-participating
a. As such, bidding and plan reproduction costs borne by KDOT
Resulting anticipated construction project cost savings:
a. $615,000-5765,000




8. Interest costs estimated to be $165,000
9. Total Estimated Project Cost Savings = $450,000-5600,000 (Shared)
10. Propose Shawnee County finance the project in 2013 with costs, including bond interest, reimbursed by sales tax

-~ in 2016

The recommendation would 1increase the bottom line on the sales tax cash
flow projections from $6.3 up to $6.8 or $7 million dollars.

Councilman Preisner said the roundabout at 61°° and Wanamaker has been let
for 2010 and asked if the Croco Road procject had been let. Mr. Flanagan
said yes. Councilman Preisner asked how scon they would go for bid for the
6lst street/53*@ Street on Wanamaker. Mr. Flanagan said December of 2010.
Councilman Preisner asked if it would be easier to move the last project
up and slide the two County projects down. Mr. Flanagan said since the
projects were being funded by Federal funds through KDOT they have a
timeframe for which they administer their projects and 2013 is the
guickest they can get it into their timeframe. Mr. Vlach said Public Works
also needs time to acquire right-of-way. Three years out i1s about the time

they like to get moving on it.

Councilman Preisner said the Wanamaker Road 61°%/53™ is going to be a done
deal and then we’re into 2012. At 2012 there are four projects; two in the
County and two in the City, given the two projects on Adams, the value is
$13 million from those two projects. The two projects on 21°% street that

—are left from the City for about $6.5 million. Councilman Preisner said he
hates to see them borrow money when they don’t have to, i1f they can
rearrange the projects. In 2012 the wvalue of the Adams project is almost
$7.1 million. He said maybe they can put the lesser value project forward
and finish this program with the 45" street project.

Mr. Flanagan said on the 45" street corridor project, the County has
already completed purchasing all the right-of-way and they’re moving into
the utility relocation phase. Probably have the utilities moved next year.
Mr. Flanagan said his concern is he has purchased temporary easements and
has a date certain in which they will go away. So if they get moved lower
than where they are currently scheduled he would have to repurchase those
temporary easements again and that would cost money.

Commissioner Miller asked Mr. Flanagan what kind of investment was made on
temporary easements. Mr. Flanagan said combined total for both projects on
45 Street, about $85,000 has been paid in temporary easement costs.
Commissioner Miller said Public Works would need to go back to the same
people and purchase a new time frame and that would only be a fraction of
the $85,000, which would be a lot less than the projected interest cost.

Commissioner Miller asked if he had any idea how many landowners he dealt

ﬁkwith. Mr. Flanagan estimated 25 total between south Topeka and California.
Z“ommissioner Miller said they could surrender the temporary easement they
have for the timeframe you have and move it forward as a negotiation.




Bond Counsel Bob Perry said he talked with County Financial Administrator
Marti Leisinger and she asked him to look at the structure for the bridge
bond the City issued in 2006. Mr. Perry said if the bridge bonds are
refinanced (they were sales tax revenue bonds) with Countywide General
Obligation refunding bonds, as of last Thursday there was a gross savings
of over a million dollars. Which in essence would allow less debt service
to be made from sales tax revenues and more sales tax revenues for
projects. The savings come from the GO bond of the county as a whole.
Commissioner Miller asked what the projected net savings would be. Mr.
Perry said that would be the net savings, a million dollars overall what
they’re paying now as compared to what would be paid under a GO bond. The
real savings is the present value savings of $950,000.

Commissioner Miller said looking at the interlocal agreement, in order to
advance this project as requested by County Public Works it would take not
only a recommendation of this Body but also take the approval of both the
City and County. He said the interlocal agreement is between the City and
County and this would modify that agreement as it relates to attachment A.
Mr. Vlach said the bottom of paragraph eight on page six reads “Nothing in
this agreement shall be construed as precluding the sales tax ballot
projects being completed earlier than scheduled.”

Commissioner Miller asked for an answer to his gquestion from respective
Counsel as to their opinion. County Counselor Rich Eckert said in an
abundance of caution they should run it through both bodies. There might
be some bonding issues as well. The bond companies might actually require
that. City Attorney Jackie Williams agreed. Mr. Perry said the way
paragraph eight read to him is that it’s an administrative dissue of
expenditure of funds. If you’re going to rearrange the date of the project
on Exhibit A, it’s his opinion both the County and the City governing body

need to approve it.

Commissioner Miller said his interpretation of what Mr. Perry reported was
if they’re concerned about their cash flow, this 1s a way to free up an
additional million dollars. It’s a separate issue. Commissioner Miller
said he likes the idea of advancing the project for all the reasons set
forth by Mr. Vlach. He likes what Mr. Perry had to say apart from what Mr.
Vlach is talking about. Commissioner Miller said he’s not adverse to what
Mr. Preisner was suggesting. He felt very comfortable on the conservative
side with the figures and the amount of interest we pay these days on a
project for that period of time does not get in his way of going ahead and
bonding it for that short term.

Mayor Bunten clarified they would refinance the bond for the Topeka
Boulevard bridge with County General Obligation Bonds because the interest
rate is lower and they could save a million dollars. Mr. Perry said the
average interest cost of the sales tax revenue bond is about 4.7%. One of
those reasons is there’s a six million dollar maturity in the last year of
which has approximately a 5.00% interest rate. A General Obligation

5

-—




13

Refunding bond would be short term bonds, 2016 maturity, and the effect of
that interest cost is 2.1% as of the marketing conditions on Thursday. The
structure of the sales tax revenue bonds, there’s a $3 million debt

~ Service reserve fund so there’s $3 million sitting with the trustee in St.
Louis on which you will be using sales tax proceeds to pay interest on.
When that $6 million matures in 2016 the $3 million debt service reserve
fund 1is going to help pay the maturity. Take $3 million out of debt
service reserve; reduce the amount of the General Obligation Bond
accordingly. We’re issuing less debt and using General Obligation to
reduce the interest cost. The sales tax revenues can still pay the General
Obligation bond but not as much sales tax is going to be needed.

Commissioner Miller asked if this Body was to act and recommended what Mr.
Perry was suggesting, it would also take approval of the respective
governing bodies. Mr. Perry said in his opinion no it would not. It would
require this Body to agree to allow the sales tax revenues to go to the
County’s payment of the Bond as opposed to going to the trustee in St.
Louis to pay those investors. Commissioner Miller asked how Mr. Perry was
going to issue County GO Bonds 1if the County Commission hasn’t approved
it. Mr. Perry said the County Commission would have to approve it but the

City Council wouldn’t.

Commissioner Miller moved that the Board do what Mr. Perry suggested and
recommend to the County Commission to do the concomitant act to make that

haEEen.

“TCouncilman Archer asked if there is no expense to calling the bonds. Mr.
Perry said not in the CS (official statement) he looked at. He would have

to look at the ordinance.

Councilman Wolgast seconded the motion. The motion was carried

unanimously.

Commissioner Miller said for him to make the right motion he needed to
elicit comment from the City Council representatives because if they’re
wedded to what Mr. Preisner 1is suggesting versus Mr. Vlach’s first
proposal, he didn’t want to do something that’s not going to get Council
approval because in order to be effective, he believed, this had to be

approved by both bodies.

Mayor Bunten said Mr. Preisner’s the one who brought it forward and he
wasn’t sure everybody understands it to the extent Mr. Preisner does.
Councilman Archer said he hadn’t studied it enough to have thoughts on it
at this point. He said if the City and County could collaborate and save
$650,000 or $700,000 he didn’t know why they wouldn’t do it. Councilman
Wolgast said he thought the same. This is a lot of information to receive
in one presentation. It’s difficult to see the big picture and know what
all the ramifications are with the presentation. It sounds 1like the

~=appropriate thing to do. Maybe after thinking about this some more there
are more questions they should be aware of.




Mayor Bunten asked if in fact with Mr. Preisner’s proposal they can save
$600, 000. Mr. Vlach said the interest cost was around $165,000.
Commissioner Miller said minus added costs of reacquiring temporary
easements. Mayor Bunten said he hadn’t heard any objections to that and he
didn’t know and was not prepared to make a commitment to go either way but
would be happy to listen. The City’s legal department can look into it and

make a recommendation.

Commissioner Buhler said she would be interested in an opinion from Public
Works because it would be the County project that would be moved further
down the project schedule. She asked what impact Public Works could
anticipate from that other than what was said. Commissioner Miller
rejected the notion they are "“County projects”. They happen to lie outside
the City limits. These are projects the people approved and the
improvement of the streets 1is going to benefit everyone. Commissioner
Buhler said they are administered by the County. Mr. Vlach said the only
other concern he would have 1is several constituents are aware of the
current timeline for these 45™ Street projects and Public Works would like
to stay on that timeline as much as possible from a credibility
standpoint. Commissioner Miller said in translation of that, they’re not
his constituents but he drives that road and that road needs to be
improved from a safety standpoint, that’s why it’s on the board. The
quicker it’s improved the better. He said 45 street needs to be widened;
it’s very unsafe right now. Mr. Vlach said assuming construction inflation
is back up; an increase would eat up the cost they would save in interest.

Councilman Preisner said he agreed with this project and how it should be
pulled together in 2013. What that leaves is four projects, which in
essence 1s only two projects; 215t street or 45™ street. The value of the
45™ street project is $13 million. The value of the 21°° street projects is
$6.5 million. He said if they’re concerned about revenue stream in the
next few vyears, they would be able to start these more inexpensive
projects earlier and upon completion he’s sure we could get into the 45
street projects well before the date they may or may not be moved to. If
this package was put together in 2004 then project costs should still be
okay, like our revenue projections. The temporary easements are just for
ingress/egress for construction purposes only. Councilman Preisner said
he’s in this business and knows roads are being built now for 20% less

than they were two years ago.

Mr. Vlach said he thought Councilman Preisner’s suggestion was valid. He
said, however, with a delay of one year, it was likely construction
inflation will occur again and wipe out the savings in interest.

Commissioner Miller said he was now convinced because while it may cost us
$160,000 in interest to advance the one project, he thought the amount it
would cost inflation wise on the others would far exceed that.
Commissioner Miller moved approval of the proposal as outlined by Mr.

-




Vlach and to recommend to the respective governing bodies to amend the
interlocal agreement to reflect that, seconded by Commissioner Buhler.

-~ Commissioner Miller said, before Mr. Vlach presents this to the City
'~ Council, that Mr. Vlach add a line immediately below the sales tax revenue
line in the sales tax cash flow projection spreadsheet that illustrates
what the projected sales tax revenues were for the first five years.
Commissioner Miller said the JEDO Board’s action to approve it will become
null and void 1if one of the other bodies does otherwise. But it won’t be
necessary once they approve it for it to come back to this Board for later

action. You might vote yes today and no tomorrow.

Commissioner Ensley called for a vote. The motion carried unanimously, 6
to 0. '

Councilman Wolgast said in establishing these meetings 1f it would be
possible to give more notice it would be appreciated. He said Councilman
Harmon could not be present and Councilman Archer and he had appointments.
Councilman Wolgast said if they could get any information ahead of time it
would be appreciated when they don’t have the background everyone else
does, so they can better understand when they come to meetings, what the
issues are. Mr. Bonaparte said Councilman Harmon did indicate he had a
conflict and that’s what precluded him from attending this meeting.’

Commissioner Miller said as Councilman Preisner has pointed out in the
past City Council members can always appoint another Council member to

““cast their ballot. Councilman Harmon missed other meetings before. There
are other Council members in attendance today, and there almost always is.
It has a consequence of the City being under represented.

Councilman Preisner said it was an excellent point made by Commissioner
Miller. He said maybe the JEDO Board ought to look at its bylaws and

consider assigning a proxy in writing.

Commissioner Ensley requested the record show Council member Sylvia Ortiz

was present.

Meeting adjourned.




=1
pECTIVED
peagy sy t-"f‘w(;

[RetEan
[N
} 3

200 Ju -u P WA

- r %1(" _f‘
o e A KA MOAD

GROWTH ORGANIZATION OF TOPEKA /
SHAWNEE COUNTY, INC. - PUBLIC

Financial Statements & Accountants’

(Approved by Board on May 7, 2010)

Compilation Report

March 31, 2010




Mize, Houser & Company, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

An independent member of BKR International

Growth Organization of Topeka / Shawnee County, Inc.
120 S.E. 6" — Suite 110
Topeka, Kansas 66603

We have compiled the accompanying financial statements of Growth Organization of Topeka /
Shawnee County, Inc.~Public (a division of Growth Organization of Topeka/Shawnee County, Inc.), (Go
Topeka), as scheduled below, in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The financial statements and
supplemental information have been prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting, which is a
comprehensive basis of accounting other than generally accepted accounting principles. The budgeted
revenue and expense information is presented for supplementary analysis purposes only.

Statement of Assets, Liabilities and Change in Funds—Public — Modified Cash Basis as of
March 31, 2010.

Statement of Income and Expense—Comparison to Budget-Public — Modified Cash Basis
for the one month and four months period ended March 31, 2010.

Supplemental Schedule of Committed/Pending Incentive Offers and Site Expenditures as of
March 31, 2010.

A compilation is limited to presenting, in the form of financial statements, information that is the
representation of management. We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial statements
and supplemental information and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on
them.

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures ordinarily included in the
financial statements prepared on the cash basis of accounting. If the omitted disclosures were included in
the financial statements and supplemental information, they might influence the user’s conclusions about
Go Topeka—Public’s financial position, and results of operations. Accordingly, these financial statements
are not designed for those who are not informed about such matters.

We are not independent with respect to Growth Organization of Topeka / Shawnee County, Inc.—~

Public.
e, Poses 5 Compan
” oceeer ¥ (.
/ y,

Mize, Houser & Company

Professional Association

Certified Public Accountants
May 3, 2010
BNO:rb:sc
Enclosures

534 S. Kansas Ave., Suite 700 534 S. Kansas Ave., Suite 400 7101 College Blvd., Suite 900 120 E. Ninth
Topeka, KS 66603-3465 Topeka, KS 66603-3454 Overland Park, KS 66210-1984 Lawrence, KS 66044-2682
785-233-0536 785-234-5573 913-451-1882 785-842-8844
FAX 785-233-1078 FAX 785-234-1037 FAX 913-451-2211 FAX 785-842-9049

hitp./fiwww.mizehouser.com Email: mhco@mizehouser.com




Go Topeka, Inc.
Statement of Assets, Liabilities, &
Change In Funds-Public - Modified Cash Basis
March 31, 2010

Assets

Current Assets
Cash-Sales Tax
Investments-Reserved for incentive/site improvements
Total Current Assets

Other Assets
Land Held for Development 6,544,757

Total Other Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Current Liabilities

DBE Carryover 371,097
Other 93,595
Due To GTCC -1,053

Total Current Liabilities

Fund Balances
Opening Fund Balance 14,963,123
Excess-Current Year 849,075

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

See Accountants' Compilation Report

2,013,508
7,717,572

9,731,080

6,544,757
16,275,837

463,639

15,812,198
16,275,837



Go Topeka, Inc.
Statement of Income and Expense - Public
Modified Cash Basis
March 31, 2010

Current Period Year to Date
Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance

Revenue

Sales Tax 416,667 416,667 - 1,250,000 1,250,000 -

Investment Income (264) 5,833 (6,098) 23,028 17,500 5,528

Investment MV Change (3,846) - (3,846) 1,397 - 1,397

Other Program Revenue 10,289 1,400 8,889 18,242 8,300 9,942

Total Revenues 422 845 423,900 (1,055) 1,292,667 1,275,800 16,867

Expenses

Program Expenses

Business Retention 10,438 16,995 6,557 34,595 60,771 26177

New Business Aftraction 22,603 47,033 24,430 60,709 135,966 75,257

Workforce Development 6,987 7,179 192 20,708 22,167 1,459

Government Relations Consuitant 3,612 6,596 2,984 10,700 19,813 9,113

Marketing & Promotional 13,224 81,944 68,720 98,521 194,047 95,526

. Research & Governmtl Relations 13,706 8,082 (5,625) 22,296 24,265 1,968

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 26,443 97,182 70,739 66,992 191,518 124,526

Small Business Innovation Center 715 4,715 4,000 2,145 6,145 4,000

Site/Prospect Support 3,811 4,828 1,017 15,576 14,489 (1,087)
* Incentives & Site Expend - Direct - - - 1,693,667 56,250 (1,637,417)
* Less: Site Expenditures Capitalized - - - (1,637,417) - 1,637,417

Total Program Expenses 101,540 274,554 173,013 388,492 725,430 336,938
General & Administrative Expenses 26,309 19,190 (7,119) 55,100 57,713 2,613
Total Expenses 127,849 293,744 165,895 443,592 783,143 339,551
Revenues over (under) Expenses 294,996 130,156 164,840 849,075 492,657 356,418

$1.6 million for Kanza land acquisition approved 2009 - closed in 2010

See Accountants’ Compilation Report




uoday uonejdwon SULUN0IDY 885

‘pasnboe pue| woyy papiaoid aq o} '}so2 sjewixoldde je saajuaoul pue (y)

000'056 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 000'056
000°056 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 000056
959'/05'61  000'0L1 000°0LE 000'0L 000'01 1 968'G1Z 622'9SL 968'c82'9  GS6'PFL'Z  081'99L'6
sz’ Liz's 0 0 0 0 000'9EL 000'9¢1 000'822'G _ SeL'LES 00S'€LL'L
00s'zv2'T 0 0 0 0 000'9€L 000'9€} 00s'ese 006'c2S 00S'€LL'L
67L'896'y 00S'¥66'y  SZT'PL
lev'96g'ecl 000011 000014 000°0}1 000°04} 968'6.8 62.'029 968'G50'L  0€T'L09'L  089'Z66°L
100°'10€'8 000'0Z 000'0Z 000'02 000'02 oLl'ese oLL'ese LLL'6EY LLL'6EY 122’6619
000'0EE 000'0¢ 000'02 000'02 000°02 000°'0S 000°0§ 000'0S 000'0S 000°0§
L00'0P6'E 0 0 0 0 oLL'eze oir'eee 111'68¢ L10'68E.  LZTYLLT
000'1€0'Y 000'LE0'Y
0£Y'S66'C 00006 000°06 00006 00006 98.'90€ 619'/¥E 611'919 EGP'L9L'L  €SP'/6L'L
000'00S 000°001 000'001 000'001 000'001 000'001
000'05¥ 000'622 000622
000'sl 000’8 000'8
000'0€ 000'0¢€
000's8 00S'ey oos'ey
000'c8¥ 00019} 000'191 000°19}
0£6'85¢ 98.2'4. 98.'tL 982'tL 9812 98/.' 2
000'SHL €€8'0F £eg8'opy 199'91¢ £99'91¢
00S'CL) 00§'2¢ 00§'LE 005°L€
000°012 0000 00002 000'0Z
000'62¢ 000°'Gt 000'SY 000'SY 000'GY 000'Gy
000'018 000'06 000'06 000'06 00006 000'06 000'06 000'06 000°06 000°06
sjejol 8i0¢C L10T 910z sioz oz eloe c10z 102 0102

010Z ‘L€ Yosiel
sainjipuadxy syg pue U180 aARUBIU| Bujpuad/papiwwon

{

*ou| ‘ejadoy 09

‘$8JO0N

(v) pue |ejoy

saAljuaou| Buipuad [eRuapyuoD
pajoadxy

pueq

yseo [ejoL

uofjBIapISUOY) JBpUN {el10L
saAuasuy yse) Buipuad [eiuspyuo)
suonisinboy pue’

UOIBIBPISUOD) JSPUN

pajoadxy pue pajwIWo? |10

pajoadx3 |ejoy

2duBUSBjUIB B "A9Q

saAnuaduy yse) Buipuad jenjuspyuod
sjuawanoldwy sy

:paadxy

papiwwo) jejol

Jeakpoog
jodaq awoH
s,Jasay

Buuug suljuiepy
B|00 BD0D)
MINLd

1991S a1
201M1295P004 §'N
Aev-omid

ajuo |8
aJuo 12Qg
BOLO)Y
papuwo)

‘ysed




re
i

[N

aEakal AN S o
neen

L

s

i

Ajunod ayy wouy Juswaleqe xe} }ssnbal [jIm Auedwon

(¥000'01L2$) aoliogz'cs

— m\‘\w

55

o

=0 000°'00%'L1$

o 5 000099 §

N 000'059'} $
ooo'srL'e $

3JUO|\

syysueq snid 000'zy$
9 MSN
+0G paulejay

A% NN
:UoljeAouUS}

:uo1joNIISU0)

Buunjoejnue|y

190

juswajeqy xe|
9A1UadU| pasodoud

:abepp abeiany

juswhojdwig

Juswysaauj jeyiden

Anysnpuj jo adAy

YHEAOL 0o e

<V_ M—ﬁ_@*\ZV




Aunog ey} wouy Juswsieqe xej }sonbal im Auedwon

juswiajeqy xe|

‘uoisuedxa sjqissod 104 8IS ay) 0} Jusoelpe s|qe|jiene 9q [I!M puej jeuollippY "000'009$ 0 enjen |ejo} e Joy 9108/000°0¢$
SI PUB| SU} JO aNjeA B 1JS00 OU Je Yied 9018WW0Y BUISSOI) [BAUSD BU} U PUE| JO SAIOE (7 pasp [IM ejado] 09

pue-

00G°121$ - InoAed wnwixepy
4/21$ Buiked suomisod oy 005 P4 .
4/91.$ Buiked suonisod 1oj 000'p$ .
Jy/51$ Buiked suonisod Joj 00G'c$ .

:Auedwiod sy) yum pajenjobau aq o} pouad Jeak G-¢ € 1an0 Jno pied (2 z) seakojdwg pases/joeluon .

“Auedwoo ay) yum pejenobau aq o) pouad teak G-€ B 180 Jno pled aq ___>> siyyl

sjyauaq snid 000's9¢$ © yuswabeuew ; =
sjjauaq snid Jy/gL$ © uononpord gl .

00S'2€1$ Jo suoiisod Auedwod Gz ayj jo yoes oy 005'G$ :suonisod Auedwon

000°000°0¢$

3% IN 000 000°GL
Buipiing 000°'000'G1$

Butinyoenuepy

Spoo4 ua||y
/SaLI9)eg oquig

juswiojdwig

jusawsaauj eyiden
Ansnpuj jo adf

V33401 ocJ/AJ

A} I WV HD

VI3 ﬂ\w\h




cosoz'sels  |osezes
00°'SSY'ZSTS 0S'TTS'BE6'ES
T

| uonsmbay 100y
0S°LL6'S60'VS

~uonisinbay pue

| 9seyd
uonisinboy pue-
Jled 92I9WIWO0Y Bl BZURY  v:ioiosd

A3 WV H

VAL

N/







60-€1-0) OQ3r Aq paroiddy

000°'St$ N0 gnjis pue Yyoums peoljiey .
000'8v$ ‘ulew 82404 pue uonejs duing .
000°0S$ :Auedoud ayj Jo

13)uS2 BU} 0] sSB0E MOJ|B 0} 80EHNS [SAEIS UM
Buipe.B pue jea1is paysiul Jo 'y gov ‘Aug .

000°'00¥$ jue| sbelio)g uojles uolN g .
000'cZL$ oulJolepn 91
000°CL$ UlBN 80104
000'GES$ SN SUSPYO .
000°08¢% Buiuoz 9 Bume|lq .
000'85.$ ‘lejoy
| aseyq
Burisauibug

Yied adJo9wwo) all4 ezuey

¥N3dOL ocﬂ/g

S

dA1v3adon




000°G2S$ 012'191$ 067'c6L$ 00.2'v5€$ 00L°L2i$ 000'85.$

SIvLOL
000'G¥$ , 000°G¥$ gNn.is B HOLIMS avoylivy
(47 00% ® ADNVHINT)
000'05$ 000'05% AVMMYYd NOILLYAONNI
000'00v$ 000°00¥$ MNVL 9OVHOLS VO NOITTIN 2

0SV'L¥1$ 052'65$ 002'90Z$ IWLOL
002'6% 00Z'6$ 1dH OL ¥3M3S ALIAVHO
00G°'29% 005°29% HAMIS ALIAVYEO 311S 440
000'0¢t$ 000°.$ 000'cZ1L$ ANIT Y3LYM 9}

09'11$ 0¥Z'98% 000°86$ V101
000'05$ 000'05¢$ HAMIS ALIAVYO 311S NO
(000'zL$) 000'Z1$ NIYWIOHOAH LIS 440
000'8v$ 000'st$ NIVINTOHO4 8 NOILLYLS dNNd
000°'0€$ 000°Z$ 000'8¥$ 000'05$ 000'08% ONINOZ ® ONILIV1d

MHOM 1OVHINOD Jlva ol INNOWVY 3d00Ss 139ang
IdNLNS INIHEND A3DI0OANI 1OVHINOD a3asingy A3n0Hddvy ERN
NI AONVY1ve IN3IYHND

ONRIIINIONT | ASVHJ
AHVd FOUININOD JHId VZNVYH




000°066$

000'€00°2$

000°G81$-
000°88¥'C$

000°8¥5°L$

000°08¥$

000'890°L$

000°0¥6$

000'659%
000°582$
1S09D

NOILONYLSNOD
d3LviiLsH

(114 ezuey|

J0 Ued se papund joN)

1dH OL d3IM3S ALIAVYED
JAILVNYHILTY AV 319i1SS0d

W10L
1NVHO vd3

wvi0o1-9ns

d43IM3S

ALINVHO

1S 440

aNIT

d31VM .91
wviol-9ns

d3MIS ALINVHO

8 NIVIW3OHOA

NOILVLS

diNnd

W3Ll

S3A1VINILST 1SOJ NOILONYLSNOD | ASYHd
NHVd FOHININOD F¥Id VZNVM




LLOZ/LEIS uoloniisuod pug

oLozc/oL/zL uolonisuo) uibeg
0L02/0z/01 Buluado pig
01L02/0Z/6 spig Jo} asiuanpy
0L0Z/E/6 lerolddy ueld
0L0Z/1€/8 Sjuswasez ulejqo
0L0Z/LL/9 10D 0} sjuswisses Jwgng
0L0Z/92/. o (¢)vd3 g exedoy
09 "0S 'LOD 0} sue|d |eul4 Hwgng

a)eq jobie] ysej

9IS-HO

s}o9foid Jamaesg Aiejiueg g 1sjepp 10y 9|npayog pasodoid




oLocieerel

010c/9/Z1

010¢/9/6

0102/91/8

0L0c/StL/L

0L0c/SL/L

010¢/L2/s

a)eq jobiej

Uley 80104 pue uonels dwng uolonsuo) pug
lameg Ajaelg) uoionusuog pu3

uofdNIIsuo) peyg

Buluedo pig

|eroiddy ueld JHOY
|eroiddy ueld exadoj jo Ao
BunsauiBug Ay oy sue|d yugng

yse}
00°02010¥-L oN 13foid 10D

Sl14 ezuey| ul s)osfoid 1amag Alejiueg oy sjnpayosg pesodo.d




0102 WoJe - Aienuer ajeq o} jenjoy

()

0

(114

oy

eos) [enuuy

09

08

001
syoeloid payienp meN [ejo)

DT0Z Yare-Atenuer aieq of fengoy

GET: 0oL

noe
00F
00

005 jeen jenuuy

003

00L

008

005

ooot
sauinbul/speat|eio)

0TOZ “493eny T
3urnioday asuewsopad 0T0Z

eyadol 0o

¢ :9jeQ o] [enjoy
00l :Ieoo [enuuy
:81098foud payijenb moau fejol

6€L :9jeq oL [enjoy
Spes| mau (00} :|eos jenuuy
(1) seuinbuyspes) jejoy

UuBWP|94/3puUlaqualaop
:SiapeaT] wea|
NOILOVYLLY 'V

YA31401 09 WY

VIl




0707 YoIRiN - Asenuep 31eq o [enyoy

SqOf pawElay

sqof Aletiag maN

0
)

L0s

s

ont

Vst

00t

0se

00¢
0s¢

oo
sjugiuadunouuy

[e0D jenuuy

0702 Yosew - Aenuer 21eq o1 (enidY

0

€00'CO0CT

€00'C00'CT
£00'T00°CE

£00'CO0TYy

£00'con'3s

000'C0E'79

£00'T00'CY

£O0'C00'2L

Co0'c00'c8

C00'C00'26

000'000'00T
juswilsanuy eyide)

jeog jenuuy

:9jeq 0} |enjoy

06 -sqor paulejay

9 :sqop Alewrid maN

00V :|eo9 |jenuuy

:sqof Arewud man
sjuswidaunouuy

000°00¥‘v9$ :@3eq O} [enjoy
:suoisuedx3 Bunsixgy wouy Jusawysanu|
:s3193(01d Mau wouy Jususanu|
UOIIIIN 001 $ :|e0D |enuuy

:JuawiysaAul jejiden




OI0T Yol - Aseruer ajeq o) jenioy

|eon jenuuy
e}

2

CT

sassauisng Suilsixg jo uonualay
0} 3ulpeaT adueisissy ARUEISGNS 1IaN(Q

0T0Z y3Jew - Arenuep aieq o3 jenpy

SHSIA Auedwo) [enuuy

0

4+ 0T
- O
i 09
- 08

00T [eoH |enuuy

+ 0T

obT
09T
08T
00z

¢ :8jeq o0} jenjoy

saiuedwod aiout 10 g} :|eO9 jenuuy
:S9ssauIsnq
bunsixs Jo uonua)ai o) Buipes|
aJue)sisse sAlue)SqNS 39341

8V :9jeQ o] |enjoy
l1ajeaib 10 00z :|eoo jenuuy
:spsIA Auedwod jenuue jo Jaquinp

wwayog :dapea weasj|
ssauisng bunsixg




SHOYS Uo j1ounog 3gQ ‘eyedol 09 ‘0010 0} pajussaid.

1400 3N "OaN “ueg gn ‘uonepunod Jsquieyn 1ouno) 39Q :suoys Bugpuny Buibesanay.
193ysiI0p 196png 400

9|oRy sssuisng ejado |«

1400 uo ases|sy ssaid.

|ouBIBU0) OAN/DAI0-
uoneouniag 14aon ‘19nslg suyo — Ainsesi) gn yum SOUSIBJU0D BUOY — |/

Ainsesi) gn - sosaiy dusyleyy - souspuodsaliog).
PENOD Ainseal] §N 0} uoissiuaNg (40 Buibiow3 pi/y — g1 ).

YdO 0} spoday.

spodai suisdid Ayyuopy.

Sjuswdosaeq sremyog vy Lo

sBunssw a0 pue auoyd s1ey) jounon Bugeladoy.

spesy (4Q0-
‘ButoBuo si ssaiboud a4 ayj uo sunoy z; pabbo| sey yess sjep oj (¢
0102 aunp-piy ut payiou aq |im yeig (z
010¢ sunr-piy ul payou aq jim jejg (1
‘9je( 03 ssaiboiy

"pung Aungioddo 3sa14 ay) 10} uoisnyus jeyides ajeAud jevo] uj 000'52$ 1se8] e UIRYGQ (g

:Ainseau) wouy jepdes 10} Buipuny dn-jieys uelqo (z
‘finseas] ayj jo Jusuniedaq gn ayy wouy Buipuny aouejsisse |edjuyss) ujeje Ajinyssaoong ()
leos) jenuuy.

‘uonnmpsuj sdueul juswdojanaq
Alunwwosy payntag ay) sepun ‘pungy Aunpuoddo jsaiy ‘puny ueojosoi ayy 9zj|ejdes pue juswajdwiy.

Bha-ojj190wiay :19pea] wea)

INJIWJOTIAIA SSANISNgG ALIIONIN/IVIMNININLININTG g




SIBUILUSS/SAOYSHION € PUE SIBUIGOAN 2 Ag peoinies S|euoissajold/sinausidanuy sseuisng llews ggi (¢
Seapusye ¢} yum sseooid ul Ajuaiino ‘C# sse|) (1ouenp ys)) 81D PIYD oei))se deyg isiiy (Z
Seopushe g1 yum sseooud uj yz# ssen (111enD 51) oA 3SRy daygisng (1

9jeQ o} ssaibouiyg

‘Seale 109[qns sjesedas unoy uo sinauaidanus 10} SIBUIQOM 1NOJ JONPUOD (§ pue ‘oAl
jo 1no unoj Bunel uoijenjeas ue pue sjuedionsed oz 1ses) je yum sweiboid [euoneonpa gy 3ses) je apinoiq (¢

‘sweiboud | 4g4 31BDP|IYd oM} Jsea) Je apinoiy (z
sweiboud jeuonipes (L4s4) yoeu] ysey da3g 38414 Inoy yseos) je aplroad (i

‘leog jenuuy.

‘sweiboud jeuonesnpa
8A1393y48 Buipinoud Aq uonejndod asudisjug ssauisng pabejueapesiq ay) Jo sanjiqedes ay asealou|.




R,

Joint Economic Development Organization Board Minutes
June 1, 2010
3:30 p.m.

The Joint Economic Development Organization (JEDO) Board met at 3:30 p.m.
with the following Board members present: Shawnee County Commissioner Ted
Ensley, Chair; County Commissioner Shelly Buhler; County Commissioner Vic
Miller; City of Topeka Mayor Bill Bunten, Deputy Mayor Deborah Swank, City
of Topeka Council Member Sylvia Ortiz and Council Member Jeff Preisner.

OTHERS PRESENT: Council member Larry Wolgast; City Manager Norton
Bonaparte; City Attorney Jackie Williams; County Counselor Rich Eckert;
Doug Glenn with Mayer, Hoffman, McCann; Brad Owen with Mize Houser; Angela
Sharp with Bartlett & West Engineers; Eileen Caspers with Washburn Tech;
Jeff Wietharn with Coffman DeFries g Nothern; Glenda Overstreet; Joe
Ledbetter; Sandy Lassiter; Lazone Grays; Marcus White with WIBW; Rick
Wienckowski, Hills Pet Nutrition; Bill Moore, Westar Energy; Steve Briman,
Bartlett & West; Scott Griffith, INTRUST Bank; Lucky DeFries, Coffman,
DeFries & Nothern; John Dicus, Capitol Federal: Doug Kinsinger, Chamber of
Commerce; Steve Jenkins, Chamber of Commerce; Dan Schemm, Chamber of
Commerce; Kathy Moellenberndt, Chamber of Commerce; Cyndi Hermocillo-Legg,
Chamber of Commerce; Ande Davis, Chamber of Commerce; Nora Patton Taylor,
Chamber of Commerce.

County Commissioner Ted Ensley called roll.

ITEM NO. 1: The JEDO meeting minutes of May 15, 2010 were approved.

Commissioner Miller moved approval of the May 15, 2010 minutes, seconded
by Councilman Jeff Preisner. The motion carried unanimously.

ITEM NO. 2: Presentation and acceptance of the GO Topeka audit as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008.

Doug Glenn with Mayer, Hoffman, McCann P.C. gave a brief overview of the
GO Topeka/Shawnee County, Inc. Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report
as of December 31, 2009. He indicated the audited financial statements
were presented to Go Topeka Board. They visited with the Go Topeka Board
about internal controls and noted to that Board there were no internal
control findings this year.

Mayor Bunten asked what egquipment was depreciating in the amount of
$26,000 to $27,000 a year. Mr. Glenn said there is office equipment and
computers in the name of Go Topeka. Mayor Bunten said if equipment is
bought to replace that which is depreciating if that is approved by this
Board or the Go Topeka Board. Doug Kinsinger with Go Topeka said that 1is
in the budget submitted to the Board in terms of items for equipment.
Mayor Bunten said Government does not pay taxes. The purpose of
depreciation 1is to accrue funds to replace equipment so it’s a valid
expense. Mr. Glenn said depreciation for an institute 1like Go Topeka, a
1




non-profit organization, is to match the use of that equipment over a
period of time that it benefits.

Commissioner Miller moved acceptance of the Go Topeka audit as required by
contract between JEDO and Go Topeka, seconded by Commissioner Buhler,
Commissioner Ensley called for a vote. The motion carried unanimously.

Councilman Preisner requested the balance of the Council members on the
Board, although non-voting, receive a copy of the audit.

ITEM NO. 3: Review and consideration of proposed incentive offer for Del
Monte.

Doug Kinsinger with Go Topeka said there were two items needing the JEDO
Board’s consideration and action. He said the expansion project by Del
Monte was announced a couple of months ago but has not been finalized.
They have been working on a contract and both contracts for this project
and for the Bimbo/Allen Foods project had been submitted to the County and
City attorneys for their review and he believed had approved them.

Mr. Kinsinger said Del Monte is a good example of what’s happening in the
manufacturing industry today. They are needing to grow and expand but they
want to do it through automation. Go Topeka would not have successfully
competed for this project and would have lost this expanded production to
one of their sister facilities which would have meant the loss of 50 jobs.
By getting the expansion here it kept those 50 jobs and added 6 more
projected positions. The wage rates are $42,000, a little over $20 an hour
for those positions due to the higher automated equipment. They are more
computer operators than they are production people.

GREATER

A EKA.

/{_ AN B T R
M Del Monte
Type of Industry Manufacturing
Capital Investment Construction: $ 3,145,000
Renovation: $ 1,650,000
M&E $_6.,605,000
$11,400,000
. Employment Retained: 50+
New: 6
. Average Wage: $42,000 plus benefits
Proposed Incentive $3,750/job

. Tax Abatement

Company will request tax abatement from the County




Commissioner Miller asked about the measurement on retention of jobs, if
there are more than 50 Jjobs at Del Monte. Mr. Kinsinger said vyes.
Commissioner Miller asked if employment is cut how the Board is going to
know where they’re cut. Mr. Kinsinger said they are under an incentive
agreement under a prior contract that requires Del Monte to keep the
minimum number of jobs in the range of 220. They would be required to keep
the existing number and 50 would be part of their existing number, six
would be added. Commissioner Miller said they have 220 jobs now and part
of the clawback on this incentive is that they retain 50 jobs. So if they
go back to 200 Jjobs there will be a clawback on this agreement and the
prior one. Mr. Kinsinger said that was correct. Part of their other
agreement was for the expansion of the distribution center. Steve Jenkins
with Go Topeka said the previous incentive was the distribution facility
and this is manufacturing. They knew these 50 were going to be eliminated
positions that were not put in the claw with any other previous agreement.
They were going to eliminate 50 additional employees.

Mr. Jenkins said this is a separate agreement and has nothing to do with
anything in which they are covered in an existing incentive agreement.
Commissioner Miller said the existing incentive agreement requires they
maintain how many jobs. Mr. Jenkins said 220 but they have more than 220
at the facility. Dan Schemm with Go Topeka said there are 285 jobs
currently. Those 50 will be given position descriptions and work from that
baseline so that 50 jobs in this incentive agreement are the ones they’re
looking at. Mr. Jenkins said this does not cover Or overlap a previous
agreement. They have more employees at the facility than covered under the
previous agreement. Commissioner Miller said his original question is how
we are going to track these 50 djobs. Is it by the total number of
employees or as Mr. Schemm just described, specific designated employees.
Mr. Jenkins said it was not specific employees, it was employment
positions and they will track these employees separate from and exclusive
of the previous agreement which 1is being tracked separately with those
employees. There are two agreements that are tracking differently and are
being measured exclusive of each other.

Commissioner Miller said he’s a little uncomfortable that the provisions
are not rock specific then we end up losing. He asked if there was a way
to approve this incentive and still reserve +the right to approve the
language. He wanted the attorneys to review the incentive language to make
sure it works like the Board intends. Jeff Wietharn with Coffman DeFries &
Nothern said he could get the answers. Mr. Jenkins said the Board could
approve the incentive subject to approval of the agreement. Commissioner
Miller made that motion. Councilman Preisner seconded the motion.

Mf. Kinsinger asked who the Board wanted to approve the agreement before
it’s executed; City and County legal staff. Commissioner Miller said it

3




was his preference this Body signs off on the agreement and it could be
reviewed at the next JEDO Board meeting. Mr. Kinsinger asked if there
would be a way to appoint a group out of this Body to approve it, where
they could either consult with the City and County attorney or if there
are members of this group that want to work with the City and County to
approve 1it, because he would hate to delay it another month. Mr. Kinsinger
said Del Monte doesn’t want to go forward without knowing the incentive is
in place. He would think this is fairly simple language that they could
make sure everybody was comfortable with. Commissioner Miller said we’ve
made that mistake before. We treated it too simply and didn’t give it a
close enough look and it was very bad for everybody, both the client and
Government. Particularly with a situation that’s complicated by the fact
they have two thresholds.

Councilman Preisner asked for clarification on how they will differentiate
between the original agreement with 220 employees and if the 56 employees
was going to be by job description. Mr. Kinsinger said it was not by
person specific. Mr. Jenkins said it will be the skilled position, not the
perscn. Mr. Kinsinger said typically how they measured was based upon
hours worked. It’s expected there will be turnover in a facility of any
size. It’s measured by hours per position at 2,080. Mr. Jenkins said it is
audited every year.

Mr. Jenkins said this allows those 50 employees not to be eliminated
because of the expansion of the operation not covered by the previous
agreement. Commissioner Ensley asked if there was a time frame for the six
jobs. Mr. Kinsinger said they have 5 years to perform.

Commissioner Buhler asked who normally approves the agreement with the
formal language. Mr. Kinsinger said their policy has been to go before the
City and County’s legal staff. Deputy Mayor Swank asked if the City and
County legal staff had seen this yet. County Counselor Rich Eckert said he
reviewed it approximately a week ago. City Attorney Jackie Williams said
his staff has seen it. Deputy Mayor Swank said she would be comfortable if
the final check would be the legal staff rather than having to come back
together. She said with that was a motion to discuss that portion of it.
Commissioner Miller said he didn’t have a problem with that. He Jjust
wanted to keep that aside until they know whether or not they were going
to support the incentive.

Commissioner Ensley called for the vote. The motion carried unanimously.

Commissioner Miller said his motion would be to require the approval of
clawback language by respective counsel for the City and County and final
approval by the Chairman of this Board. Councilman Preisner seconded the
motion. The motion carried unanimously.

Review and consideration of proposed incentive offer for Bimbo/Allen

“ Foods.




ETTS

Steve Jenkins said Bimbo Bakeries USA has a fully owned subsidiary by the
name of Allen Foods that is solely focused on bakery products. They will
be in this facility baking bread. Mr. Jenkins reviewed the following:

s W Bimbo Bakeries/
< 7 .
CA0 0 Allen Foods
Q_ GO TOPEKA
Type of Industry Manufacturing
Capital Investment $15,000,000 Building
$15,000000M & E

$30,000,000
Employment

- Company positions: $5,500 for each of the 25 company positions or $137,500
- 18 production @ $19/hr pius benefits
. 7 management @ $65,000 plus benefits
This will be paid out over a 3-5 year period to be negotiated with the company.

- Contract/Leased Employees (27) paid out over a 3-5 year period to be negotiated with the company:
- $3,500 for positions paying $15/hr.
- $4,000 for positions paying $16/hr.

- $4,500 for positions paying $17/hr.
Land

GO Topeka will deed 20 acres of land in the Centrai Crossing Commerce Park at no cost. The value of the land is
$30,000/acre for a total value of $600,000. Additional land will be avaiiable adjacent to the site for possible expansion.

Tax Abatement

Company will request tax abatement from the County

Mr. Jenkins said the building is being built for two lines. They’re being
told within two years the second line will be installed so the building
will be fully operational on two lines and that is all they intend to have
in any one plant. Mr. Jenkins said in addition to the 52 positions with a
second line they may be looking at an additional 20 to 25 employees. They
are not ready to make that commitment and obligation and so this agreement
does not take that into account. If they expand and went to a second line
they would come before this Body again and ask for additional funding for
that line.

Councilman Preisner asked should the company leave Topeka and vacate the
property, if the land reverts back to Go Topeka. Mr. Jenkins said
typically not because there’s a building asset that is marketable sitting
on the site. Commissicner Miller said the point is they would already have
the land and they would be gone. He asked if there’s a clawback for the
land. Mr. Jenkins said typically they do not have a clawback for the land.
They do on the cash incentive. He said this is typical of economic
development organizations to give land, and you have a building asset
sitting on that land that is marketable. This would be 135,000 square foot
building completely empty, which would be a marketable asset. Commissioner
Miller said that did not get the $600,000 back and asked if they leave how
the $600,000 is recovered. Mr. Jenkins said the point is you have an
economic asset to market for another company to fill that building long

5




term. Typically economic development organizations do not claw the land
back because it is a head ache. Commissioner Miller said not the land but
the value of the land. Mr. Jenkins said they could certainly do that but
he would not recommend it because they have not wused that procedure
before. Mr. Kinsinger said in prior contracts they required some clawback
if they did not develop and if they did not put the building on. There was
& period of time where they had to improve the property, where they knew
they would have a tax base long term. He said if they own that building
and it sits vacant, even if they apply for tax abatement, at the end of
that tax abatement clock, it still goes on the tax roll. He said they have
not required a clawback on the value of the land.

Councilman Preisner said historically what has been seen on this type of
development, that does not transpire. You have a building with asset, a
company that’s gone that owns the building but we have the land. Mr.
Jenkins said they have to be 1in operation within 12 months of starting
construction. Council member Sylvia Ortiz asked if there is room for
expansion. Mr. Jenkins said there is room for expansion on the site.

Councilman Preisner made a motion to approve the incentive as presented,
seconded by Council member Ortiz. The motion carried unanimously.

ITEM NO. 4: Update on Kanza Fire Commerce Park Infrastructure.

Steve Jenkins reviewed Kanza Fire Commerce Park Engineering Phase 1 below..
He said they’re going to buy a piece of KDOT land at the Highway 75 and
Gary Ormsby Drive interchange. That piece of property is needed in order
to make this work well. They propose to buy it for $32,250.00 for 4.4
acres. A small triangle of land is going to be given back which gives an
area for an off ramp. That would leave a land acquisition balance of
$125,205.00.

Mr. Jenkins

@ oo rorexa Kanza Fire Commerce Park
Land Acquisition
Phase 1

JEDO Approved Expended Balance
10-132-09

Options $29,625 " L2965 o

Land Acquisition $4,095,977.50 $3,938,522.50 $157.,455.00
KDOT Acquisition S32.,250 $125,205.00




Mr. Jenkins reviewed the Kanza Fire Commerce Park Engineering Phase 1
information below.

A A B e w

@ oo e Kanza Fire Commerce Park
Engineering
Phase 1
Total: $758,000
- Platting & Zoning: $80,000
- Offsite Utilities: $535,000
- Force Main $12,000
- 168" Water Line $123,000
- 2 Million Gallon Storage Tank $400,000
- Entry, 400 ft. of finished street and grading
with gravel surface to allow access to the center
of the property: $50,000
- Pump station and force main: $48,000
- Railroad switch and stub out: $45,000

Approved by JEDO 10-13-09

Angela Sharp with Bartlett and West reviewed Kanza Fire Commerce Park
Phase 1 Engineering and said she took the budget Mr. Jenkins reviewed,
made revisions and added information.

KANZA FIRE COMMERCE PARK
PHASE | ENGINEERING

CURRENT BALANCE IN
ITEM APPROVED REVISED CONTRACT INVOICED CURRENT FUTURE
BUDGET SCOPE AMOUNT TO DATE CONTRACT WORK

PLATTING & ZONING $80,000 $50.000 $48.000 $2,000 $30.000
PUMP STATION & FORCEMAIN $48,000 $48.000
OFF SITE FORCEMAIN $12,000 ($12,000)
ON SITE GRAVITY SEWER $50,000 $50,000

TOTAL $98,000 $86,240 $11,760
16" WATER LINE $123,000 $7,000 $130,000
OFF SITE GRAVITY SEWER $67.500 $57,500
GRAVITY SEWER TO HPT $9,200 $9,200

TOTAL $206,700 $59,250 $147,450
2 MILLION GAL STORAGE TANK $400.000 $400,000
INNOVATION PARKWAY $50,000 3$50,000
(ENTRANCE & 400 LF)
RAILROAD SWITCH & STUB $45,000 $45,000
TOTALS $768,000 $121.700 $354,700 $193,490 $161,.210 $525,000

There was originally $12,000 for an off-site force main extension to
provide service just for Kanza Fire for a force main to tie into the
Shunga interceptor. Since that time they opted to go with an interceptor
sewer that could serve other areas between Kanza Fire and its connection
to the Shunga interceptor. Ms. Sharp said initially just the water 1line
was a part of the contract that would provide water service to the north
side of Kanza Fire and extend up to north of where the golf course is
located. That is a 16 inch water line to provide better service to the
area. Since then an extension of the water line was added further to the

7




East. They also looked at the offsite gravity sewer that would extend on
up to the Shunga interceptor.

Ms. Sharp said one other item was an extension of the gravity sewer since
they are taking the public service from Kanza Fire up to the Shunga
interceptor, with an extension to the East and under Topeka Boulevard so
this could be provided to Heartland Park that 1is currently on a lagoon
system. Another advantage to extending it to the East would be that a
gravity sewer can be extended along the East edge of Kanza Fire to provide
service to the eastern portion of Commerce Park as well.

Ms. Sharp said out of the 380,000 approved for platting and zoning there’s
a contract for $50,000 for the first phase. The =zoning is completed and
approved through the County and the final plat is in the last stages
through the City. The $30,000 for future work would be the second phase of
the Industrial Park that is to the west of Highway 75.

Ms. Sharp said there is a portion of gravity sanitary sewer that will
provide service to the southern portion of Kanza Fire that will go down to
a pump station located off 85" Street. That will pump into a force main
that takes it up to the new Innovation Parkway, the new street threough
Kanza Fire. There’s a gravity sewer that would eventually tie into the
other interceptor sewer that would come up to the Shunga interceptor.

Ms. Sharp said the offsite utilities are the sewer and water that extend
up to the north side of Kanza Fire. The first portion was only the water
line. The other line items were the $7,000 to extend the design to extend
the water line east towards Heartland Park which would eventually be a
looping system along Topeka Boulevard that will provide better service to
the entire Commerce Park and the additional gravity sewer. The last item
is the future work. The 2 million gallon storage tank also includes the
upgrading of the water pump station north of the golf course installed in
the early 50’s that needs upgraded. It also includes extension of water
lines between what is currently designed up to where the new water tower
would be. The railroad switch and stub has not been designed and probably
won’t be until there is a user so they know exactly what is needed. Mr.
Jenkins said there is a major European prospect looking at a site here.

Ms. Sharp reviewed the Phase I construction cost estimates.




KANZA FIRE COMMERCE PARK
PHASE | CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATES

ESTIMATED

ITEM CONSTRUCTION
cosT
PUMP
STATION $285,000
FORCEMAIN &
GRAVITY SEWER $655,000
SUB-TOTAL $940,000
16" WATER
LINE $1.068,000
OFF SITE
GRAVITY
SEWER $480,000
SUB-TOTAL $1,548,000
$2.488,000
EPA GRANT -$485,000
TOTAL $2,003,000

POSSIBLE ADD ALTERNATIVE
GRAVITY SEWER TO HPT $990,000

Commissioner Miller asked if the EPA Grant amount was what the Board had
to pay. Ms. Sharp said that was the match the EPA would pay. She said the
possible add alternate in the amount of $990,000 is the piece of gravity
sewer that would extend from the north end of Commerce Park to the east
down slightly under the railroad tracks and underneath Topeka Boulevard,
over to Heartland Park. The reason it was chosen to go ahead and design
that portion and the reason it would be a good idea to construct that is
because that sanitary sewer is quite deep. There is a ridge that runs
through the eastern portion of Kanza Fire. They were trying to retain as
much land as they possibly could for development. In doing so they have
all the utilities and utility corridor along the north side of Kanza Fire.
They have the water line, sewer line and gas line compacted in. With the
sewer being the deepest, if they do not extend the sanitary sewer over to
Heartland Park now, they will in the future have to move it further to the
south and into the developable property so they can construct it.

Ms. Sharp said an item not listed is for the portion of the gravity sewer
that would serve the south side of Kanza Fire. That portion is $650, 000
and is another alternate in the contract that’s under design. Commissioner
Miller asked what “not funded as part of Kanza Fire” meant. He asked who
was going to fund the $990,000. Ms. Sharp said that is an alternate on the
contract. She assumed that would be a match between the City and Go Topeka
but she did not know. Mr. Jenkins said there had been conversation with
Heartland Park because they have a severe issue over there with sewer. It
also keeps the development of the land at bay. He said they didn’t know
who was going to pay for it but it was not a part of this project. Mr.
Jenkins said with the bids they are receiving right now, if they receive
good bids, as Ms. Sharp said, this is the time to put it in. Others have
to come to the table to pay for it. Commissioner Miller said the answer
was someone else.

~Councilman Preisner said the identified revenue source for the debt
service of this project is the quarter cent sales tax. Mr. Kinsinger said
for everything so far for the economic development portion. He said this

9




is what was approved in the budget the Board gave them at the end of last
year for infrastructure.

Ms. Sharp reviewed the Proposed Schedule for Water and Sanitary Sewer
Projects Off-Site and Onsite. She indicated the only caveat to the date
for obtaining the easements was there are seven privately owned property
owners they are conversing with that if they have to go to condemnation
that could take another couple of months to go through the condemnation
process. The plan approval on September 3, 2010 is contingent upon the EPA
review.

Proposed Schedule for Water & Sanitary Sewer Projects
North of Kanza Fire

Task Target Date
Submit Final Plans to COT, SC, Go

Topeka & EPA(?) 7/26/2010
Submit Easements to COT 8/11/2010
Obtain Easements 8/31/2010
Plan Approval 9/3/2010
Advertise for Bids 9/20/2010
Bid Opening 10/20/2010
Begin Construction 12/10/2010
End Construction 5/31/2011

Proposed Schedule for Sanitary Sewer Projects in Kanza Fire
COT Project No T-401020.00

Task Target Date

Submit Plans to City Engineering 5/27/2010
City of Topeka Plan Approval 7/15/2010
KDHE Plan Approval 7/15/2010
Bid Opening 8/16/2010
Start Construction 9/6/2010
End Construction Gravity Sewer 12/6/2010
End Construction Pump Station and Force Main 12/23/2010

Commissioner Ensley asked who approves the bids and signs the contracts.
Ms. Sharp said these are going to be City projects.

10




Ny

ITEM NO. 5: The First Quarter 2010 GO Topeka Progress Report was reviewed.

Steve Jenkins briefly reviewed the key accountabilities that JEDO holds
them accountable for. Mr. Jenkins said they set an ambitious goal of 1,000
new leads. In the first quarter which ended in March, there were 139, The
end of May figures push it above the half way mark. On the new qualified
projects they have 2 in the first quarter, out of their goal of 100. They
are seeing softening on that because of one factor, the credit market.
Companies are not making decisions until they figure out what’s going to
happen with the credit market. Projects now being funded are being funded
out of company’s reserves. Mr. Jenkins said the hope is the latter part of
this year there will be some positive changes in the credit market. He
said they are seeing apprehensions now that if the oil spill 1is not
controlled and there’s significant clean up, what kind of impact that’s
going to have.

Mr. Jenkins said the Capital investment goal was $100 million and they bid
$64,400,000 million in the first guarter. With the Allen Foods project
it’s pushing it closer to the $100 million goal. On the
Entrepreneurial/Minority Business Development, they are pursuing the
Creation of a microloan fund called First Opportunity fund. It will be =
Certified Community Development Finance Institution which they received in
January from the Department of Treasury. They have capitalized that fund
with the combination of DBE funds and the Chamber Foundation at $403,000
and they have a request into Treasury to match those dollars. He said they
anticipate hearing something mid June in terms of the Treasury’s infusion
of capital. Mr. Jenkins said the goal is modest for private capital, which
could be local banks or investors of $25,000. The goal was to have g
microloan revolving fund that’s going to range between $750,000 and $1
million. If they can do that it’s going to be substantial for this
community for those disadvantaged small businesses.

Mr. Jenkins made note of having a CDFI, certified by the Department of
Treasury allows them also to become a CDE or Community Development Entity.
If their requests are successful, it will bring new market tax credits. So
that is being pursued. Another goal is to increase the capabilities of the
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise population by having four First Step
FastTrac and two childcare FastTrac programs. They are working on webinars
for small businesses and workshops to continue to support that particular
clientele in helping them be successful and Create Jjobs as well as
economic activity for that particular sector.

Meeting adjourned.

11




